EXECUTIVE

Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2017 starting at 7.00 pm

Present:

Councillor Stephen Carr (Chairman)
Councillors Graham Arthur, Peter Fortune, Kate Lymer,
Peter Morgan, Colin Smith and Diane Smith

Also Present:

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P., Councillor Simon Fawthrop, Councillor William Huntington-Thresher and Councillor Angela Wilkins

224 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

225 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

During the item on CCTV (Minute 231) Councillor Simon Fawthrop declared an interest as an employee of British Telecom.

226 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

Questions had been received from David Clapham and Colin Willetts – the questions and replies are attached as Appendix A to these minutes.

TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 14 AND 22 MARCH 2017

Report CSD17057

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings held on 14th and 22nd March 2017 be confirmed.

228 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS

Report CSD17069

The Executive noted the appointments made by the Leader for 2017/18, in particular the allocation of portfolios and the appointment of Executive Assistants -

The Executive

Cllr Colin Smith - Deputy Leader and Environment Cllr Graham Arthur – Resources Cllr Diane Smith – Care Services Executive 24 May 2017

Cllr Peter Fortune – Education, Children and Families Cllr Kate Lymer - Public Protection and Safety Cllr Peter Morgan - Renewal and Recreation

Executive Assistants

Cllr Hannah Gray, Renewal and Recreation Cllr Angela Page, Care Services Cllr Tom Philpott, Education, Children and Families Cllr Tim Stevens, Environment

Further details, including appointments to other executive bodies, are set out in Appendix B to these minutes.

RESOLVED that the Executive appointments for 2017/18 be noted.

229 CHILDREN'S SERVICES UPDATE

Report CSD17130

The Executive received an update on progress with improvements to Children's Services. The Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of Education, Care and Health Services confirmed that recruitment was progressing well and that Ofsted and the DfE Commissioner were pleased with the direction of travel.

The Leader thanked the Deputy Chief Executive for the positive progress, but accepted that there were still areas of weakness and there was no room for complacency.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

230 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN PUBLIC REPORT Report CS18004

The report set out the findings of the Local Government Ombudsman in a case where the parents of a young person had complained that the Council had failed to ensure that their son continued to receive a support package following his 18th birthday when he transitioned to adult social care. The Ombudsman had found fault causing injustice, and had issued a public report on 2nd March 2017 which the Council was required to consider.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017. The Committee recommended that the Executive refer the case to the Care Services PDS Committee for review.

The Leader stated that it was important that the mistakes made in this case were not repeated, and that the Care Services Portfolio Holder should be kept informed.

RESOLVED that the action taken to resolve the complaint be noted, and the compensation payment of £6,032.10 be endorsed.

231 GATEWAY 0 REPORT: PROCUREMENT STRATEGY FOR LBB CCTV SERVICE

Report ES17020

The Community Safety CCTV control room was currently located within the Civic Centre complex, at the rear of the St Blaise building. Notice had been given that the redevelopment proposals for the Civic Centre site included the need to vacate this building. Therefore an alternative location for the CCTV control room would need to be found or an alternative model of service delivery commissioned.

The current contract, under a 1 year extension, expired on 31 March 2018, with the option available for up to an additional extension of 1 year, delegated to the Executive Director of Environment and Community Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder. The programme for this European tender process was anticipated to take 14 month and it would be necessary to increase the current extension to 14 months.

The report outlined the strategy for the Community Safety CCTV service and sought approval to start the process of market testing this service. At this stage various options were still open, including relocating the service (potential space had now been identified at the Council's depot, but not at the Police Station), a shared service with another local authority and outsourcing. There were potential capital costs depending on the chosen option. The Council currently used its own cable network, and 3G where this was not available. A wireless service could be located anywhere, but the costs would need to be taken into account.

The report had been scrutinised by the Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee at its meeting on 29th March 2017 and the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that

- (1) The strategy for the continued delivery of the CCTV service including the market testing of the CCTV functions, whilst exploring alternative commissioning options, be agreed.
- (2) A further report be received outlining the results of the commissioning process with a recommendation for the optimum service delivery model.

(Councillor Simon Fawthrop declared an interest during consideration of this report as an employee of British Telecom.)

232 GATEWAY REVIEW - ADULTS AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SUBSTANCE MISUSE SERVICES

Report CS18005

The report set out the commissioning intentions relating to substance misuse contracts, together with the benefits and implications for London Borough of Bromley. The current contracts for the Adult and Young People's Substance Misuse services ran until 30 November 2017 with an option to extend for a period of one year. The report presented the case for extending the contracts for these services. Additionally, there were two smaller substance misuse contracts with community pharmacies which were due to expire in March 2018. These could be extended and then incorporated into the Adult Substance Misuse service when it was retendered to start on 1st December 2018.

Members noted that there had been a welcome 34% increase in the numbers of young people in treatment in Bromley in 2016. The report included further data on performance and activity levels across these contracts.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that

- (1) The extension of the Adults and Young People's Substance Misuse contracts with Change, Grow, Live be approved for a period of one year from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2018 (as set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report.)
- (2) The exemption from tendering of the Community Pharmacy Needle Exchange and Supervised Administration of Methadone services for a period of eight months from 1 April 2018 to 30 November 2018 to align with the above Adults and Young People's Substance Misuse contracts be approved (as set out in paragraph 4.2 of the report.)
- (3) All Substance Misuse Contracts be tendered for a period of three years plus an optional two year extension from 1 December 2018 to 30 November 2021 (3+ 1 + 1 years) as set out in paragraph 4.3 of the report.

DRAWDOWN AND CARRY FORWARD OF CONTINGENCY GOVERNMENT (NEW BURDENS) GRANT FUNDING TO SUPPORT THE LOCAL AUTHORITY IN IMPLEMENTING THE SEN REFORMS AND THE CONTINUED ROLE OF BROMLEY (IN PARTNERSHIP WITH ENFIELD) AS SEND REGIONAL LEAD FOR LONDON

Report ED15082

The New Burdens Grant was designed to ensure that local authorities delivered changes to SEND services within a specified timeframe. The focus of the work was now on transferring statements into Education Health and Care Plans.

The Executive agreed to draw down the remainder of the 2016/17 SEND Implementation (New Burdens) Grant, the 2017/18 Grant and also the London SEND Regional Lead Grant for 2017/18 (shared with LB Enfield.). This was the final year of both grants.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that

- (1) The drawdown of the final year of the SEN New Burdens Grant 2017/18 of £224,975 be approved.
- (2) The drawdown of the remainder of the 2016/17 SEND Implementation grant of £20,508 kept in contingency be approved.
- (3) The drawdown of the final year of the London SEND Regional Lead Grant 2017/18 of £27,522 be approved.

234 CAPITAL FUNDING FOR PROPERTY DISPOSAL/FEASIBILITY WORKS

It was proposed that a sum of £250k be set aside in a new Earmarked Reserve to enable feasibility works to be undertaken on various sites, either currently identified or yet to be identified, within the Borough either for disposal to generate a capital receipt or to redevelop to provide new facilities or developments to generate efficiencies and/or economic growth. The allocation would be made with the important proviso that where allowable, expenditure was funded by the receipts generated from site sales, or feasibility costs for a re-development were capitalised.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017. The Committee had supported the recommendations, but had recommended that progress be monitored by the Contracts Sub-Committee, the list of sites for feasibility work be prioritised, and the alternative for the Aviation College site at Biggin Hill be removed from the list of sites. The Chairman of the PDS Committee asserted that the Airport

had committed to provide the College; Members asked that the position be checked before any expenditure was incurred.

Members emphasised that it was important that there was robust governance around use of this money and good communication with ward Councillors and residents' groups from the earliest stages. The Portfolio Holder for Renewal and Recreation reassured Members that Cushman and Wakefield had the capacity to carry out this work and to give each project the necessary high priority.

RESOLVED that

- (1) The creation of a new Earmarked Reserve be approved with an initial allocation of £250k to be funded from the Growth Fund to allow for the feasibility works to be commissioned against specific sites so as to inform the Executive of sites viability for disposal or re-development and potential scheme optimisation together with an appraisal as to worth.
- (2) That officers are delegated authority to instruct appropriate consultants, in accordance with the Council's Procurement Policies, with approval from either the Resources Portfolio Holder or the Renewal and Recreation Portfolio Holder as appropriate.
- (3) It is noted that recommendations for future disposals/redevelopments will be made by the Executive on a case by case basis but will be informed by the feasibility work.
- (4) It is noted that monitoring of this allocation will be undertaken as part of the Capital Programme monitoring process.
- (5) A variation of up to £250k to the contract with Amey be agreed to undertake this work.
- (6) No further action be taken on potential alternative sites for a Biggin Hill Aviation College until the position is clarified.
- 235 CONSULTATION ON OUTLINE FORMAL SERVICE PROPOSALS AND **PROCUREMENT** STRATEGY **FOR** TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION MODULAR HOME PROVISION Report CS18006

The report summarised the current pressures around temporary accommodation provision and the activities currently underway, and sought approval to proceed to invite bids to pilot the use of modular homes for the provision of temporary accommodation as part of the overall strategy to reduce the current use of costly nightly paid provision. The scheme was intended to both provide much needed temporary accommodation and reduce expenditure. The Council would retain nomination rights for such a scheme, and an experienced provider would be required to manage the units. A site at York Rise, Orpington, which was due to be sold, had been identified for a pilot

scheme with 30 to 36 family sized units. The Council spent more than £4.5m (net) procuring temporary accommodation for homeless households every year and demand for this service was forecast to increase.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017. The Committee had supported the recommendations, but with the additional suggestion that the sale of the site be delayed and the modular accommodation be provided for longer than three years, with no restrictions made on removing it from the site. The Committee had been concerned that there might have been abortive expenditure on preparations for disposing of the site – this would be checked. The Chairman of the Committee also enquired whether the units provided would contribute towards the Council's housing targets in the Local Plan, and whether the project could become part of the Mears scheme.

Members were in largely favour of keeping options open and seeking a longer period than three years, and of purchasing rather than leasing the modular homes, but the market testing would reveal the likely costs and benefits of the various options. A number of other local authorities had experience with such schemes and had offered to share their expertise. It was suggested that the presentation of the project needed to focus on the provision of modular homes rather than on homelessness.

A PDS Member suggested that the Council should also explore the use of static mobile homes, and approach the owners of local sites who might have vacant plots.

RESOLVED that

- (1) Progression to invite bids from prospective providers to undertake a pilot temporary modular home development on York Rise for use as temporary accommodation to meet the Council's statutory rehousing duties in relation to homeless families be agreed.
- (2) The proposed next steps for procurement and evaluation and appointment of a provider be approved as set out in paragraph 9.3 of the report, subject to the comments set out above.

236 HOMELESS CONTINGENCY DRAWDOWN FOR EARLY INTERVENTION AND VISITING RESOURCES Report CS18007

The Executive received an update on the current homeless pressures and the business case to approve drawdown from the contingency budget. This would be used to both pilot an early intervention model in preparation for the Homeless Reduction Act and to establish a dedicated visiting fraud prevention service to avoid unnecessary financial costs regarding non-occupation of temporary accommodation. These measures are part of the overall strategy to tackle the growing level of homelessness and reduce the associated costs of temporary accommodation provision.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that

- (1) The release of up to £230K set aside in the central contingency for homelessness and welfare reform to pilot the early intervention initiative set out in the body of the report as part of the range of activities being undertaken to prepare for the requirements of the Homeless Reduction Act and to address the current cost pressures in relation to temporary accommodation provision.
- (2) The release of £80K set aside in the central contingency for homelessness and welfare reform be approved to pilot the visiting fraud prevention initiative set out in the report as part of the range of activities being undertaken to address the current cost pressures in relation to temporary accommodation provision.

237 LOCALLY ADMINISTERED BUSINESS RATES RELIEF SCHEME

Report FSD17040

The Executive considered the design for a local discretionary relief scheme for businesses facing significant increases in their Business Rates liability as a result of the 2017 revaluation. A period of consultation was required before the scheme was finalised; Members considered that as the proposals would be generally welcomed a relatively short consultation period could be allowed so that the scheme could be implemented as quickly as possible. Members also urged that the scheme be kept simple to administer.

The report had been scrutinised by the Executive and Resources PDS Committee at its meeting on 18th May 2017.

RESOLVED that

- (1) A consultation exercise be undertaken with the scheme proposed in the report being recommended for adoption.
- (2) The consultation should last for three weeks starting after the end of the "purdah" period for the general election with a view to a final decision being taken at the Executive's meeting on 19th July.

238 CONTRACT AWARD: 0-4 HEALTH VISITING AND FAMILY NURSE PARTNERSHIP (PART 1 SUMMARY) Report CS18008/1

The Executive considered a summary of a part 2 report providing an overview of the tendering process for the 0-4 years Health Visiting Service (incorporating the Family Nurse Partnership.)

239 CONSIDERATION OF ANY OTHER ISSUES REFERRED FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There were no additional issues reported from Executive and Resources PDS Committee.

240 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summaries refer to matters involving exempt information

241 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 14TH AND 22ND MARCH 2017

The exempt minutes of the meetings held on 14th and 22nd March were approved.

242 CONTRACT AWARD - 0-4 HEALTH VISITING AND FAMILY NURSE PARTNERSHIP

The Executive awarded the contract for 0-4 Years Health Visiting Service.

243 AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR CAPITAL WORKS AT LEESONS PRIMARY SCHOOL

A contract was awarded for construction works at Leesons Primary School.

244 INTEGRATED COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES

The Executive agreed to the Council participating in a new Framework Agreement for community equipment services and awarding a contract under the new Framework.

The Meeting ended at 8.24 pm



Minute Annex

Appendix A

EXECUTIVE

24th May 2017

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

From David Clapham to the Renewal and Recreation Portfolio Holder

1. Are members aware of the fact that there is an existing planning permission (Ref: DC/14/02136/FULL1) in place for a museum alongside the Chapel at Biggin Hill?

Reply:

Yes.

2. The sums on the document in your papers approved for the fees of Robin Lee Architecture for the Biggin Hill Memorial Museum at well over £225,000 are duplicating the work by the Biggin Hill Battle of Britain Supporters Club, which secured planning approval. Which budget source are these funds coming from?

Reply:

The work is not a duplication and unlike the Biggin Hill Battle of Britain Supporters Club the Council has developed a scheme on the basis of available grant funding, a sustainable business plan for the future governing Trust, and transferred land ownership from the RAF. The Council's match funding for the scheme is from Central Contingency.

3. What does the Contract with Robin Lee Architects call for in circumstances where the submitted planning application (17/00728/FULL1) is refused?

Reply:

Planning permission has been granted. Robin Lee Architects are paid in relation to work completed. Therefore if planning permission had not been granted the architects would not receive the remainder of their fee in relation to RIBA stages 5-7.

From Colin Willetts, Secretary of the Longbury Residents Association, to the Environment Portfolio Holder

1. Could you extend yellow lines in front of bus stops outside 297 & opposite 283 Chipperfield Road or increase bus quadrant length to take into account new stock with centre opening doors thus allowing residents safely alight on hard base rather than frontage verge?

Reply:

Retention of parking stock on Chipperfield Road remains necessary to reduce average traffic speeds.

Your question relating to the use of differently designed busses will be investigated and a written response sent to you shortly.

2. Having been previously attended court as a witness (LBB) in the case of a resident successfully claiming compensation from LBB having slipped whilst alighted bus on grass verge, would you, where necessary, increase hard standing capacity across Cray Valley West to prevent a re- occurrence of these preventable accidents?

Reply:

Each bus stop is assessed on a case by case basis.

3. Having been outstanding for 8 months, could you tell us when the metal fencing adjacent 2 St Peters Lane (with 12 foot drop below to concrete base/no safety barriers) will be replaced?

Reply:

This was completed on 4th May 2017.

Appendix B

Executive - 24th May 2017

5. The Leader's Executive Appointments 2017/18

(1) The Executive

Cllr Colin Smith - Deputy Leader and Environment

Cllr Graham Arthur - Resources

Cllr Diane Smith - Care Services

Cllr Peter Fortune - Education, Children and Families

Cllr Kate Lymer - Public Protection and Safety

Cllr Peter Morgan - Renewal and Recreation

(2) Executive Assistants

Cllr Hannah Gray, Renewal and Recreation

Cllr Angela Page, Care Services

Cllr Tom Philpott, Education, Children and Families

Cllr Tim Stevens, Environment

(3) Boards, Working Groups, Advisory Panel

Health and Wellbeing Board

Cllr David Jeffreys (Chairman)

Cllr Robert Evans (Vice-Chairman)

Cllr Ruth Bennett

Cllr Stephen Carr

Cllr Ian Dunn

Cllr Mary Cooke

Cllr Judi Ellis

Cllr Angela Page

Cllr Diane Smith

Children's Services Governance Board

Cllr Nicholas Bennett

Cllr Stephen Carr

Cllr Peter Fortune

Town Centre Working Group:

Cllr Vanessa Allen

Cllr Julian Benington

Cllr Stephen Carr

Cllr Peter Dean

Cllr Nicky Dykes

Cllr Will Harmer

Cllr William Huntington-Thresher

Cllr Alexa Michael

Cllr Peter Morgan

Cllr Colin Smith

Cllr Michael Tickner

Constitution Improvement Working Group

Cllr Graham Arthur

Cllr Julian Benington

Cllr Nicholas Bennett

Cllr Stephen Carr

Cllr Mary Cooke

Cllr Peter Dean

Cllr Robert Evans

Cllr David Livett

Cllr Tony Owen

Cllr Tim Stevens

Cllr Colin Smith

Cllr Angela Wilkins

Crystal Palace Park Executive Project Board

Cllr Stephen Carr (Chairman)

Cllr Peter Morgan

Cllr Angela Wilkins

Local Development Framework Advisory Panel

Cllr Vanessa Allen

Cllr Lydia Buttinger

Cllr Stephen Carr

Cllr Peter Dean

Cllr Nicky Dykes

Cllr Simon Fawthrop

Cllr William Huntington-Thresher

Cllr Charles Joel

Cllr Russell Mellor

Cllr Alexa Michael

Cllr Peter Morgan

Cllr Colin Smith

Cllr Melanie Stevens

4) Panels

Bromley Adoption Panel

Cllr Alan Collins

Cllr Diane Smith

Cllr Stephen Wells

Bromley Fostering Panel

Cllr Judi Ellis

Cllr Hannah Gray